
1

ceccareb@talussoftware.com

From: Armstrong, Kyle D <Kyle.Armstrong@illinois.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 6, 2022 2:22 PM
To: ceccareb@talussoftware.com
Cc: Czuprynski, Victoria A.; Schatteman, Joe; DOT.Policy
Subject: Web Email from Brian Ceccarelli - #145239

Mr. Ceccarelli, 
 
Thank you for your inquiry regarding IDOT’s practices for determining yellow change intervals.  Below please find the 
section from the Bureau of Operations Traffic Policies and Procedures Manual pertaining specifically to yellow change 
intervals and all red clearance intervals as it currently stands.  Please note that we are continuously looking to update 
our policies and procedures as needed which includes the below section.  Potential updates may be based on the most 
recent ITE recommendations for calculating change and clearance intervals, the proposed 11th Edition of the MUTCD, 
and the ongoing Traffic Signal Change and Clearance Interval Pooled Fund Study being led by FHWA.  Please let me know 
if you have further questions. 
 

 
 
Kyle D. Armstrong, P.E., PTOE 
Engineer of Traffic Operations 
Illinois Dept. of Transportation, Bureau of Operations 
2300 S. Dirksen Parkway 
Springfield, IL 62764 
Phone: 217/782-2076 
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E-Mail:Kyle.Armstrong@illinois.gov 
Please consider the environment before printing this email 
  
State of Illinois - CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this communication is confidential, may be attorney-client 
privileged or attorney work product, may constitute inside information or internal deliberative staff communication, and is intended 
only for the use of the addressee. Unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this communication or any part thereof is strictly 
prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-
mail and destroy this communication and all copies thereof, including all attachments. Receipt by an unintended recipient does not 
waive attorney-client privilege, attorney work product privilege, or any other exemption from disclosure. 
 

-----Original Message-----  
From:           ceccareb@talussoftware.com  
Sent:           Tuesday, May 3, 2022 4:01 PM  
Subject:        Web Mail from Brian Ceccarelli  

Web Page:       IDOT Home Page  
Name:           Brian Ceccarelli  
Address:        4605 Woodmill Run  
                Apex, NC  27539  
Work #:         919-815-0126  

Question:   
I am looking for Illinois DOT's specs on the traffic signal timing, specifically the yellow change interval practice including 
computation.   This info is no on your website.  The BDE Manual  says this information is in the "Bureau of Operations 
Traffic Policies and Procedures Manual."   This manual does not exist at your website either, and I cannot order it 
either.   Please help. 

 


